
 

  www.wincoil.us | Page 1  

 

AGENDA 
 

Virtual Meeting – Zoom 
(Winnebago County YouTube Live) 

 
Thursday, February 11, 2021 

6:00 p.m.  
 

The Winnebago County Board Chairman has determined that an in-person meeting is not 
practicable or prudent because of the COVID-19 pandemic. 

 
1. Call to Order  .............................................................................. Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance ....................................... Board Member Dave Tassoni 
 
3. Agenda Announcements ............................................................. Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
4. Roll Call ............................................................................................... Clerk Lori Gummow 
 
5. Awards, Presentations, Public Hearings, and Public Participation  

A. Awards – None  
B. Presentation on Host Fees – Dave Rickert 
C. Public Hearings – None 
D. Public Participation – None  

 
6. Approval of Minutes ................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

A. Approval of January 14, 2021 minutes 
B. Layover of January 29, 2021 minutes  

 
7. Consent Agenda .......................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

A. Raffle Report 
B. Auditor’s Report – None  

 
8. Appointments (Per County Board rules, Board Chairman appointments require a 30 day 

layover unless there is a suspension of the rule). 
A. New Milford Fire Protection District Board 

1. Kurt Rodgers (Reappointment), Rockford, Illinois, December 2020 – December 2023 
B. Durand Sanitary District 

1. David Waller (Reappointment), Durand, Illinois, December 2020 – December 2023 
 

9. Reports of Standing Committees ................................................. Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 



www.wincoil.us | Page 2  

A. Finance Committee .................................................... Jaime Salgado, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution Authorizing Settlement of Litigation (Serena J. Samuels v. County of 

Winnebago) 
3. Ordinance Amending the Claims Settlement Procedure for the County of Winnebago, 

Illinois  
4. Ordinance Establishing a Property Assessed Clean Energy (“PACE”) Program in the 

County of Winnebago, Illinois, Designating a PACE Area, Providing for Property 
Assessments and Approving Related Matters  

5. Resolution for Approval of Budget Amendment for Reimbursable Technology 
---- 

6. Ordinance Abating the Tax hereto Levied for the Year 2020 to Pay the Principal of and 
Interest on Taxable General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2018 
to be Laid Over 

7. Ordinance Abating Special Tax Roll for 2020 Levy Year for Properties within the Special 
Service Area for the 1-39/Baxter Road County Water District Project to be Laid Over 

8. Ordinance to Abate the 2012C State Income Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy for 
the Year 2020 to be Laid Over 

9. Ordinance to Abate the Federal Aid Matching Tax and Motor Fuel Tax Alternate Bond 
(2012D Series) Property Tax Levy for the Year 2020 to be Laid Over 

10. Ordinance to Abate the 2012F Alternate Revenue Bond Property Tax Levy for the Year 
2020 to be Laid Over 

11. Ordinance to Abate the 2012G Alternate Revenue Bond Property Tax Levy for the Year 
2020 to be Laid Over 

12. Ordinance to Abate the 2013A Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy 
for the Year 2020 to be Laid Over 

13. Ordinance to Abate the Federal Aid Matching Tax and Motor Fuel Tax Alternate Bond 
(2013B Series) Property Tax Levy for the Year 2020 to be Laid Over 

14. Ordinance to Abate the 2016A Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy 
for the Year 2020 to be Laid Over 

15. Ordinance to Abate the 2016D Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy 
for the Year 2020 to be Laid Over 

16. Ordinance to Abate the 2016E Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy 
for the Year 2020 to be Laid Over 

17. Ordinance to Abate the Federal Aid Matching Tax and Motor Fuel Tax Alternate Bond 
(2017 Series B) Property Tax Levy for the Year 2020 to be Laid Over 

18. Ordinance to Abate the 2017C Tort Property Tax and Quarter Cent Sales Tax Alternate 
Bond Property Tax Levy for the Year 2020 to be Laid Over 

19. Ordinance to Abate the 2020A Alternate Revenue Bond Property Tax Levy for the Year 
2020 to be Laid Over 

20. Ordinance to Abate the 2020B Winnebago County Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy 
for the Year 2020 to be Laid Over 
 

B. Zoning Committee ........................................................ Jim Webster, Committee Chairman 
Planning and/or Zoning Requests: 

1. Committee Report 
 



www.wincoil.us | Page 3  

C. Economic Development Committee ................................... Jas Bilich, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 

 
D. Operations & Administrative Committee ............... Keith McDonald, Committee Chairman 

1. Committee Report 
 

E. Public Works Committee ............................................. Dave Tassoni, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 

 
F. Public Safety and Judiciary Committee…………………………….Burt Gerl, Committee Chairman 

1. Committee Report 
 
10. Unfinished Business…………………………….…………………………………….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
11. New Business…………………………………………………………………………….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
12. Announcements & Communications ................................................... Clerk Lori Gummow 

A. Correspondence (see packet)  
 
13.  Adjournment – Next Meeting…………………………………………………….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
Next Meeting:  Thursday, February 25, 2021 



 

  
Awards,  

Presentations,  
Public Hearings  

and Public Participation 

 
 



 

 Approval of 
Minutes 

 



















 

CONSENT 
AGENDA 





 

  
Appointments 

 
 



 
  

 

 
               404 Elm Street • Room 533 • Rockford, IL 61101 | Website: www.WinCoIL.us 
It is our mission to provide high quality services and promote a safe community for all people in Winnebago County. 

 

Executive Summary 
Date: January 26, 2021 
From: County Board Chairman Joseph V. Chiarelli 
Topic: Board Appointment 
 
State of Illinois Public Act 099-0634 requires disclosure of appointments to local public entities. 
 
County Code Chapter 2, Article II, Division 4, Section 2-88 states, “The chairman shall make all 
appointments to commissions, boards, authorities, or special districts with the advice and consent of the 
county board, or as otherwise provided by law.” 
 
Recommendation: County Board Chairman Joseph V. Chiarelli recommends the following person(s) to 
serve as County appointees. 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 
 
Kurt Rodgers of Rockford, Illinois, 61109 to serve a 3-year term to end December 2023 on the 
New Milford Fire Protection District Board. 
 

About the New Milford Fire Protection District 
Location:  2177 Will James Road, Rockford, IL  61109 
Service Description:  Provides fire, emergency, medical and other life safety services to Southern 

Winnebago and Ogle Counties 

Board Composition:  Three trustees appointed by the Winnebago County Board Chairman with 
advice and consent of the County Board.   

Origin of Entity: Fire Protection District Act (70 ILCS 705/1) 

Property Tax/Funding: 
 

District levies and annual property tax, charges for services and replacement 
tax 
 

Consolidation/ 
Dissolution Plan: 

None Known 

Compensation: $1,200 per year 

 







 
  

 

 
               404 Elm Street • Room 533 • Rockford, IL 61101 | Website: www.WinCoIL.us 
It is our mission to provide high quality services and promote a safe community for all people in Winnebago County. 

 

Executive Summary 
Date: January 28, 2021 
From: County Board Chairman Joseph V. Chiarelli 
Topic: Board Appointment 
 
State of Illinois Public Act 099-0634 requires disclosure of appointments to local public entities. 
 
County Code Chapter 2, Article II, Division 4, Section 2-88 states, “The chairman shall make all 
appointments to commissions, boards, authorities, or special districts with the advice and consent of the 
county board, or as otherwise provided by law.” 
 
Recommendation: County Board Chairman Joseph V. Chiarelli recommends the following person(s) to 
serve as County appointees. 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 
 
David Waller of Durand, Illinois, 61024 to serve a 3-year term to end December 2023 on the 
Durand Sanitary District Board. 
 

About the Durand Sanitary District 
Location:  308 W. Main Street, Durand, IL 61024 
Service Description:  Provides sanitary sewer service to the Durand Area 

Board Composition:  Three members appointed by the Winnebago County Board Chairman with 
advice and consent of the County Board.   

Origin of Entity: Sanitary District Act 1917 (70 ILCS 2405/3) 

Property Tax/Funding: 
 

District levies and annual property tax, charges for services and replacement 
tax 
 

Consolidation/ 
Dissolution Plan: 

None Known 

Compensation: N/A 

 



 

January 23, 2021 

Serving the community of Durand by taking an interest in the Durand Sanitary District operation has 
been very rewarding over the many years that I have served.  We have kept the financial burden of the 
taxing body down and keep the services of the district at a top level.  The lagoon system has provided 
the community with a great asset and has the capacity to accept growth as the community increases.  
There are no major problems on the horizon and we look forward to many years of cooperation with the 
Village of Durand.  I wish to be reappointed to the Board of Trustees for another 3 year term. 

 

David Waller 

PO Box 474 

Durand, IL 61024 

815-997-7692 





 

 
Reports of 
Standing 

Committees 
 
 
 



 

FINANCE 
COMMITTEE 



 
 

   
    Resolution Executive Summary 

 

USE Department LETTERHEAD | 404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319- XXXX  |  Email: XXXXXXXXX      

    ResExSummary 20.1 version 

 
Prepared By:   David J. Rickert 
Committee:   Finance Committee 
Committee Date:  2/4/2021 
Resolution Title:      Resolution Authorizing Settlement of Litigation 
County Code:         Not Applicable 
Board Meeting Date:    2/11/2021 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    Yes                 Appropriation Amount:   $34,000 
If not, explain funding source:    
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:   49400-43535                        Budget Impact:  Within budgeted amount 

 
Background Information: 
 
Settlement of claim against the County 
 
Recommendation:  
 
Staff concurs 
 
Contract/Agreement: 
 
Not Applicable 
 
Legal Review:   
 
Legal review was conducted by States Attorney’s office 
 
Follow-Up: 
 
Not Applicable 

http://www.wincoil.us/


SPONSORED BY:  JAIME SALGADO 
 

RESOLUTION 
OF THE  

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

SUBMITTED BY: FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 

2021CR_______ 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SETTLEMENT 
OF LITIGATION (Serena J. Samuels v. County of Winnebago)  

       
WHEREAS, Serena J. Samuels v. County of Winnebago, is a pending civil action against 

the County, filed in the Seventeenth Judicial Circuit, Winnebago County, Illinois, as case 
number 2020 L 158; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Plaintiff therein has agreed to settle all claims he has against the County 
for the sum of Thirty Four Thousand Dollars ($34,000.00); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Finance Committee, after having reviewed the facts and circumstances 
of the aforementioned case and after having conferred with the Winnebago County State’s 
Attorney, through his assistant, has determined it is in the best interests of the citizens of 
Winnebago County to settle this case on the terms set forth above. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, that the Winnebago County State’s Attorney is hereby authorized to settle 
the aforementioned lawsuit by paying the Plaintiff therein the sum of Thirty Four Thousand 
Dollars ($34,000.00).   
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Winnebago County Treasurer, Winnebago 
County Clerk, and Winnebago County Finance Department are authorized and directed to 
prepare and deliver to the Winnebago County State’s Attorney one or more County Warrants 
totaling $34,000.00, payable as directed by the State’s Attorney. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect 

immediately upon its adoption. 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

2 
 

AGREE      DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

JAIME SALGADO, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ 
 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

 PAUL ARENA 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 
 The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, this _____ day of ___________________, 2021. 
 
  
     
       _____________________________ 
       Joseph Chiarelli 
       Chairman of the County Board 
       of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
Attested by: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Lori Gummow 
Clerk of the County Board 
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 

 
 



 

  Resolution Executive Summary 

 

 

Human Resources  |  404 Elm St, Rm 220, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 

Phone: (815) 319- 4285  |  Fax: (815) 319-4286   
 

 

Prepared By:  Debbie Crozier 

Committee:    Finance Committee 

Committee Date:   February 4, 2021 

Ordinance Title:  Ordinance Amending the Claims Settlement Procedure  

Board Meeting Date:  February 11, 2021  

 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    N/A                        Appropriation Amount: 

If not, explain funding source:    

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:                              Budget Impact:  

 
 
Background Information:    The current approval amounts for workers compensation settlements is as 
follows:     
 
Claims under $5,000 =   Administrator to Approve 
Claims under $10,000 = Finance Committee to Approve  
Claims over $10,000 =    County Board to Approve 
 
In review of the process it has been determined the approval amounts of the settlements have not been 
updated since 1999. Increasing the settlement amounts will provide us with greater efficiencies and 
expedite the process.    
 

Recommendation:    The Administrator concurs with the recommended increase in settlement 
amounts.  
 
Contract/Agreement:   N/A  
 
Legal Review:   This was reviewed by the States Attorney’s office. 
 
Follow-Up:   Begin new processing new settlement amounts effective February 12, 2021. 
 
 
 

http://www.wincoil.us/


1 
 

County Board Meeting 

February 11, 2021 

 

SPONSORED BY:  JAIME SALGADO 

 

ORDINANCE 

OF THE  

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

2021 CO ___ 

 

ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CLAIMS SETTLEMENT PROCEDURE  

FOR THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

WHEREAS, the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, desires to 

amend their ordinances related to settling liability and workers’ compensation claims 

against the County; and 

 

WHEREAS, Chapter 2, Article VII, Section 2-402 of the Winnebago County 

Code of Ordinances provides levels of authority for settlement of liability claims against 

the County and Chapter 62, Article 6, Division 7, Section 62-242 provides levels of 

authority for settlement of workers’ compensation claims against the County; and 

 

WHEREAS, the levels of authority for both liability claims and workers’ 

compensation claims have not been adjusted in over twenty (20) years; and 

 

WHEREAS, County Administration recommends increasing the levels of 

authority to streamline the process of settling lower level claims. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois, that Chapter 2, Article VII, Section 2-402 of the Winnebago County 

Code of Ordinances is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 

Sec. 2-402. – Structure. 

 

Liability claims asserted against the county, its officials and its employees shall 

be handled in the following manner: 

 

(1) All recommended settlements in excess of $1025,000.00 must be 

approved by the county board. 

 

(2) The county administrator, with the concurrence of the state’s attorney 

or his designee, shall have the authority to settle liability claims 

betweenin excess of $510,000.00 and up  to and $1025,000.00 with the 

approval of the finance committee or its successor committee. 

 



2 
 

 

(3) The county administrator shall have the authority, with the 

concurrence of the state’s attorney or his designee, to settle all liability 

claims up tounder $105,000.00.  The administrator shall report to the 

finance committee or its successor committee, on a monthly quarterly 

basis, the number and dollar amounts of any liability claims settled. 

 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that Chapter 62, Article 6, Division 7, Section 

62-242 of the Winnebago County Code of Ordinances is hereby amended to read as 

follows: 

 

Sec. 62-242. – Claim settlement policies. 

 

Workers’ compensation claims filed against the county shall be handled in the 

following manner: 

 

(1) All recommended settlements in excess of $2510,000.00 must be 

approved by the county board. 

 

(2) The county administrator shall have the authority to settle workers’ 

compensation claims between in excess of $510,000.00 and up to 

$1025,000.00 with approval of the finance committee or its successor 

committee. 

 

(3) The county administrator shall have the authority, with the 

concurrence of the director and the state’s authoritychief financial 

officer, to settle all workers’ compensation claims under up to 

$510,000.00.  The county administrator shall report to the finance 

committee or its successor committee, on a quarterly basis, the number 

and dollar amounts of any workers’ compensation claimsases settled. 

 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance shall be in full force and 

effect immediately upon signing. 

 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board shall provide 

a certified copy of this Ordinance upon its adoption to the County Administrator, the 

Director of Human Resources, and the State’s Attorney. 

 

   

Respectfully submitted, 

 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 

 

 

 



3 
 

 

 

AGREE      DISAGREE 
 

_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Jaime Salgado, Chairman    Jaime Salgado, Chairman   
 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Joe Hoffman      Joe Hoffman 
 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Jean Crosby      Jean Crosby  
 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Steve Schultz      Steve Schultz 
    
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Keith McDonald     Keith McDonald 
 

_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
John Butitta      John Butitta 
 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Paul Arena      Paul Arena 
 

 

APPROVED this _____ day of ___________________, 2021 by the County 

Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois. 

 

    

  

       _____________________________ 

       Joseph Chiarelli 

       Chairman of the County Board 

       of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 

Attested by: 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Lori Gummow 

Clerk of the County Board 

of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 

 































































































































2021-CO 

TO: THE HONORABLE MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY  
OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

Your Finance Committee presents AN ORDINANCE ABATING THE TAX HERETO LEVIED 
FOR THE YEAR 2020 TO PAY THE PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON TAXABLE 
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS (ALTERNATE REVENUE SOURCE), SERIES 2018, and 
recommends its adoption. 

 
  Respectfully Submitted, 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 

JAIME SALGADO, 
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 JAIME SALGADO, 
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

STEVE SCHULTZ  STEVE SCHULTZ 

JOHN BUTITTA  JOHN BUTITTA 

PAUL ARENA  PAUL ARENA 

JOE HOFFMAN  JOE HOFFMAN 

JEAN CROSBY  JEAN CROSBY 

KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ORDINANCE No. _______ 
 

AN ORDINANCE abating the tax hereto levied for the year 2020 to 
pay the principal of and interest on Taxable General Obligation 

Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2018, of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois. 

 
 WHEREAS the County Board (the “Board”) of the County of Winnebago, Illinois (the 

“County”), by an ordinance adopted on the 25th day of October 2018, (as amended and 

supplemented, the “Bond Ordinance”), did provide the (i) the issue of Taxable General Obligation 

Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2018 (the “Bonds”), (ii) the pledge of taxes levied upon 

all taxable property in the County for IMRF purposes (the “Pledged Revenues”) to the payment 

of principal of and interest on the Bonds and (iii) the levy of a direct annual tax sufficient to pay 

such principal of and interest (“Pledged Taxes”) if the Pledged Revenues are insufficient to make 

such payment; and 

 WHEREAS the Board has levied taxes for IMRF purposes for levy year 2020 (the “IMRF 

Levy”) and filed the same with the County Clerk of the County (the “County Clerk”); and 

 WHEREAS the County has received notice from the County Clerk that the tax rate for the 

IMRF Levy for levy year 2020 does not exceed the County’s “limiting rate” for levy year 2020 

calculated by the County Clerk in accordance with the provisions of the Property Tax Extension 

Limitation Law, as amended; and 

 WHEREAS the IMRF Levy for levy year 2020 is not less than the amount of principal of 

and interest on the Bonds otherwise payable from Pledged Taxes levied for the year 2020; and  

 WHEREAS it is necessary and in the best interests of the County that the Pledged Taxes 

levied for the year 2020 to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds be abated; 

 NOW THEREFORE be it Ordained by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 

Illinois, as follows:   

 Section 1.  Abatement of Tax.  The Pledged Taxes levied for the year 2020 in the Bond 

Ordinance are hereby abated in their entirety. 

 Section 2.  Filing of Ordinance.  Forthwith upon the adoption of this Ordinance, a certified 

copy hereof shall be filed with the County Clerk, and it shall be the duty of the County Clerk to 

abate the Pledged Taxes levied for the year 2020 in accordance with the provisions hereof. 



 Section 3.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect forthwith upon 

its passage by the Board. 

 Adopted on ______________, 2021.  
 
 
        ______________________________ 
        Chairman, County Board 
        Joseph V. Chiarelli 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
County Clerk 
Lori Gummow 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

 
TO: THE HONORABLE MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY  

OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
Your Finance Committee presents AN ORDINANCE ABATING SPECIAL TAX 
ROLL FOR 2020 LEVY YEAR FOR PROPERTIES WITHIN THE SPECIAL 
SERVICE AREA FOR THE I-39/BAXTER ROAD COUNTY WATER 
DISTRICT PROJECT, and recommends its adoption. 
 

 
 
 

Dated this _________ day of _________________, 2021. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(TO ADOPT)  (NOT TO ADOPT) 

JAIME SALGADO, 
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 JAIME SALGADO, 
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

STEVE SCHULTZ  STEVE SCHULTZ 

JOHN BUTITTA  JOHN BUTITTA 

PAUL ARENA  PAUL ARENA 

JOE HOFFMAN  JOE HOFFMAN 

JEAN CROSBY  JEAN CROSBY 

KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 



 
ORDINANCE OF THE  

 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
2021 CO ______ 

 
SUBMITTED BY:  FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
SPONSORED BY:  JAIME SALGADO 

 
AN ORDINANCE ABATING SPECIAL TAX ROLL FOR 2020 LEVY  

YEAR FOR PROPERTIES WITHIN THE SPECIAL SERVICE AREA FOR  
THE I-39/BAXTER ROAD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT PROJECT 

 
WHEREAS, on August 9, 2012, the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, by 
Ordinance Number 2012-CO-056, approved establishing a Special Service Area (“SSA”) for the 
I-39/Baxter Road County Water District Project; and, 
 
WHEREAS, on October 25, 2012, the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, by 
Ordinance Number 2012-CO-072, approved an amendment to said establishing Ordinance, which 
enacted a Special Tax Roll assessing a special tax against each property lying within the SSA for 
the administration and maintenance of the SSA and for the payment of principal and interest on 
the County’s General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2012F, issued 
pursuant to the establishing Ordinance for the purpose of financing a part of the cost of construction 
and formation of said County Water District Project; and,  

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to an Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement (“Agreement”) between 
the County of Winnebago, Village of Cherry Valley and the Village of New Milford, dated June 
6, 2012, the parties determined that the area in and around the Baxter Road interchange on I-39 is 
appropriate for the formation of an Industrial Park Conservation Area to spur private investments 
and development defined in the Industrial Jobs Recovery Law (“IJRL”); and, 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the Agreement, the Special Tax Allocation Fund (“STAF” as defined in 
the IJRL), created with the tax increment financing will be placed under the control of Winnebago 
County to be administered for the length of the project; and  

  
WHEREAS, funds deposited in the STAF generated from the IJRL District shall be used to pay 
for the payments on the SSA Bonds as first priority; and,  

 
WHEREAS, the Special Tax Roll for the SSA for levy year 2020 totaled $432,544; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there is sufficient funds from the IJRL increment in the STAF fund as of September 
30, 2020, to make the payments on the bonds for June 30, 2021 and December 30, 2021.   

 



NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that the County Board hereby abate the Special Tax Roll for levy year 2020 in the following 
amounts: 
 
 Pin No.    Amount 
 16-28-300-021   $11,848.84 
 16-28-300-024   $19,962.39 
 16-28-300-026   $57,499.04 
 16-28-400-019   $29,392.48 
 16-28-400-022   $12,721.43 
 16-28-400-023   $61,678.28 
 16-28-400-024   $32,316.42 
 16-33-200-009   $120,157.06 
 16-33-100-009   $86,968.06 
 Total    $432,544.00 
 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect forthwith 
immediately upon its adoption. 

 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that the Clerk of the County Board shall deliver certified copies 
of this Ordinance to the Winnebago County Clerk, the Chief Financial Officer and the Winnebago 
County Director of Finance. 
 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois this _____ day of __________, 2021. 
 
 
                       ______________________________  

                                                                             Joseph V. Chiarelli,  
Chairman of the County Board 

of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
______________________________   
Lori Gummow  
Clerk of the County Board 
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2021-CO 
 
TO: THE HONORABLE MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY  

OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
Your Finance Committee presents AN ORDINANCE TO ABATE THE 2012C 
STATE INCOME TAX ALTERNATE BOND PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR 
THE YEAR 2020 and recommends its adoption. 
 
 

  Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 

JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

  JAIME SALGADO, 
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

STEVE SCHULTZ  STEVE SCHULTZ 

JOHN BUTITTA  JOHN BUTITTA 

PAUL ARENA  PAUL ARENA 

JOE HOFFMAN  JOE HOFFMAN 

JEAN CROSBY  JEAN CROSBY 

KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

Sponsored by:  Jaime Salgado 
 COUNTY BOARD MEETING 

 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

 
2021-CO 

 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO ABATE THE 2012C STATE INCOME TAX 
ALTERNATE BOND PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR THE YEAR 2020 

 
 

WHEREAS, on June 12, 2003 the County Board of the County of Winnebago passed 
Ordinance No. 2003-CO-54 which gave the County of Winnebago the authority to sell Alternative 
Bonds in an amount not to exceed $1,340,000 for the purpose of capital improvements to certain 
County owned buildings; and, 

 
WHEREAS, on August 14, 2003 the County Board of the County of Winnebago passed 

Ordinance No. 2003 CO 85 which the Board ordained to issue $1,340,000; and, 
 
WHEREAS, on February 23, 2006 the County Board of the County of Winnebago passed 

Ordinance No. 2006-CO-20 which gave the County of Winnebago the authority to sell Alternate 
Bonds in an amount not to exceed $3,500,000 to raise money for the purpose of defraying the cost 
of capital improvements to certain County buildings; and, 
 

WHEREAS, on April 27, 2006 the County Board of the County of Winnebago passed 
Ordinance No. 2006-CO-58 (hereinafter referred to as “Alternate Bond Ordinance”) which the 
Board ordained to issue $3,500,000 in Alternate Bonds authorized in 2006-CO-20; and, 

 
WHEREAS, on April 26, 2012 the County Board of the County of Winnebago adopted 

Ordinance No. 2012-CO-031, which provides for the issuance and sale of $3,285,000 General 
Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2012C to refund all of the $710,000 Outstanding Bonds of 
Series 2003D and a portion of the $2,800,000 Outstanding Bonds of Series 2012C; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides that the principal and interest 

payments on the aforesaid Alternate Bonds shall be made from State Income Tax Dollars (Pledged 
Revenues), which have been pledged towards the payment of the Bonds; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides the County shall also levy an annual 
2012C State Income Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax in an amount sufficient to make the 
principal and interest payments on the outstanding Alternate Bonds as such payments become due 
for each year in which any of the Bonds are outstanding; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the County ordained to levy a 2020 2012C State Income Tax Alternate Bond 
Property Tax sufficient to produce the sum of $275,600 the amount needed to make all principal 
and interest payments on the outstanding Alternate Bonds through December 30, 2021; and, 



 
WHEREAS, the Alternate Bond Ordinance authorizes the County Board to abate each 

annual 2012C State Income Alternate Bond Tax Levy provided there are sufficient funds on 
deposit in the Pledge Revenues Subaccount of the Principal and Interest Account of the 2012C 
State Income Alternate Bond Fund to fully pay the Alternate Bond Debt Service otherwise payable 
from each such Tax Levy; and, 
 

WHEREAS, there is presently $275,600 in the aforesaid Pledged Revenues Subaccount, 
which is sufficient to fully make all principal and interest payments on the aforementioned 
outstanding Alternate Bonds through December 30, 2021; and, 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the Alternate Bond Ordinance, it is no longer 
necessary for the County to levy a 2012C State Income Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax for the 
2020 tax year. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board for the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois that the 2012C State Income Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy in the 
amount of $275,600 for the tax year 2020 is hereby abated in its entirety. 
 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its adoption. 
 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized 
and directed to file a certified copy of this tax abatement Ordinance in the office of the Winnebago 
County Clerk. 

 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

 
Winnebago, Illinois this ______ day of _____________2021. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



2021-CO 
 
TO: THE HONORABLE MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY  

OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
Your Finance Committee presents AN ORDINANCE TO ABATE THE FEDERAL 
AID MATCHING TAX AND MOTOR FUEL TAX ALTERNATE BOND 
(2012D SERIES) PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR THE YEAR 2020 and 
recommends its adoption. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 

JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

  JAIME SALGADO, 
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

STEVE SCHULTZ  STEVE SCHULTZ 

JOHN BUTITTA  JOHN BUTITTA 

PAUL ARENA  PAUL ARENA 

JOE HOFFMAN  JOE HOFFMAN 

JEAN CROSBY  JEAN CROSBY 

KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 



Sponsored by:  Jaime Salgado 
COUNTY BOARD MEETING 

 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

 
2021-CO 

 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO ABATE THE FEDERAL AID MATCHING TAX 
AND MOTOR FUEL TAX ALTERNATE BOND (2012D SERIES) 

PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR THE YEAR 2020 
 
 

WHEREAS, on July 22, 2004 the County Board for the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
passed Ordinance No. 04CO-74 which gave the County of Winnebago the authority to sell 
Alternate Bonds in an amount not to exceed $28,000,000 to raise money for the purpose of paying 
the expenses for engineering and right-of-way costs, utility relocations, and the County’s 
proportionate share of construction or maintenance of highways in the Federal Aid Network or 
County Highway Network, and costs incident to certain transportation planning studies in the 
County; and, 
 

WHEREAS, on October 28, 2004 the County Board of the County of Winnebago passed 
Ordinance No. 04CO100 (hereinafter referred to as “Alternate Bond Ordinance”) which the Board 
ordained to issue $10,000,000 in Alternate Bonds; and, 
 

WHEREAS, on April 26, 2012 the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
approved Ordinance No 2012 CO-032 which authorizes and provides for the issuance and sale of 
$8,400,000 General Obligation Refunding Alternate Bonds (Matching Tax and Motor Fuel Tax 
Alternate Revenue Sources), Series 2012D of the County of Winnebago, Illinois for the purpose 
of refunding a portion of the $8,765,000 Outstanding Aggregate Principal Amount of General 
Obligation Alternate Bonds (Matching Tax and Motor Fuel Tax Alternate Revenue Sources), 
Series 2004A; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides that the principal and interest 
payments on the aforesaid Alternate Bonds shall be made from Federal Aid Matching Tax 
Revenues and Motor Fuel Tax (Pledged Revenues), which have been pledged towards the payment 
of the Bonds; and, 
 

WHEREAS, Section 20 of the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides the County shall also 
levy an annual Federal Aid Matching Tax and Motor Fuel Tax Alternate Bond (2012D Series) 
Property Tax in an amount sufficient to make the principal and interest payments on the 
outstanding Alternate Bonds as such payments become due, for each year in which any of the 
Bonds are outstanding; and 
 

WHEREAS, in Section 20, the County ordained to levy a 2020 Federal Aid Matching Tax 
and Motor Fuel Alternate Bond (2012D Series) Property Tax sufficient to produce the sum of 
$1,093,150 (the amount needed to make all principal and interest payments on the outstanding 
Alternate Bonds through December 30, 2021); and, 
 



 
 

WHEREAS, Section 22 of the Alternate Bond Ordinance authorizes the County Board to 
abate each annual Federal Aid Matching Tax and Motor Fuel Tax Alternate Bond (2012D Series) 
Tax Levy provided there are sufficient funds on deposit in the Pledge Revenues Subaccount of the 
Principal and Interest Account of the Federal Aid Matching Tax and Motor Fuel Tax Alternate 
Bond (2012D Series) to fully pay the Alternate Bond Debt Service otherwise payable from each 
such Tax Levy; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Treasurer transferred, on a temporary basis, $546,575 

into the Pledged Revenues Subaccount of the Principal and Interest Account of the Federal Aid 
Matching Tax and Motor Fuel Tax Alternate Bond Fund (2012D Series); and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Treasurer deposited $546,575 into the Pledged 

Revenues Subaccount of the Principal and Interest Account of the Federal Aid Matching Tax and 
Motor Fuel Tax Bond Fund (2012D Series) from the Motor Fuel Tax Fund; and, 

 
WHEREAS, there will be $1,093,150 in the aforesaid Pledged Revenues Subaccount, 

which is sufficient to fully make all principal and interest payments on the aforementioned 
outstanding Alternate Bonds through December 30, 2021; and, 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the Alternate Bond Ordinance, it is no longer 
necessary for the County to levy a Federal Aid Matching Tax and Motor Fuel Tax Alternate Bond 
(2012D Series) Property Tax for the 2020 tax year. 
  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board for the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois that the 2020 Federal Aid Matching Tax and Motor Fuel Tax Alternate Bond 
(2012D Series) Property Tax Levy in the amount of $1,093,150 is hereby abated in its entirety. 
 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its adoption. 
  

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized 
and directed to file a certified copy of this tax abatement Ordinance in the office of the Winnebago 
County Clerk. 
 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 
Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2021. 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 

JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



2021-CO 
 
TO: THE HONORABLE MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY  

OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
Your Finance Committee presents AN ORDINANCE TO ABATE THE 2012F 
ALTERNATE REVENUE BOND PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR THE YEAR 
2020 and recommends its adoption. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Sponsored by:  Jaime Salgado 

COUNTY BOARD MEETING 

  Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 

JAIME SALGADO, 
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 JAIME SALGADO, 
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

STEVE SCHULTZ  STEVE SCHULTZ 

JOHN BUTITTA  JOHN BUTITTA 

PAUL ARENA 
 

 PAUL ARENA 

JOE HOFFMAN  JOE HOFFMAN 

JEAN CROSBY  JEAN CROSBY 

KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 



 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2021-CO 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO ABATE THE 2012F ALTERNATE REVENUE 
BOND PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR THE YEAR 2020                   

 
 

WHEREAS, on September 6, 2012 the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
adopted Ordinance No 2012 CO 061 (the Authorizing Ordinance) authorizing the issuance of 
General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source) Series 2012F as provided in the Act, in an 
amount not to exceed $5,000,000; and, 

 
WHEREAS, on October 25, 2012, the County Board of the County of Winnebago adopted 

Ordinance No. 2012F CO 073 (hereinafter referred to as “Alternate Bond Ordinance”) which 
authorized and provided for the issuance of $4,320,000 General Obligation Bonds (Alternate 
Revenue Sources); and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Alternate Bond Ordinance gave the County the authority to sell Alternate 
Bonds for the purpose of paying the costs of a water system and associated improvements within 
the I39/ Baxter Road Special Service Area; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides the principal and interest payments 
on the aforementioned Alternate Bonds shall be made from the Special Service Area Taxes, Sales 
Tax and any other revenue, which have been pledged towards the payment of the Bonds; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Alternate Bond Ordinance also provides that the County shall levy an 
Alternate Bond Property Tax, each year until the Bonds are fully paid, in an amount sufficient to 
fully make principal and interest payments on the Alternate Bonds as such payments become due; 
and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Alternate Bond Ordinance further provides that the County shall levy an 
Alternate Bond Property Tax in 2019 sufficient to produce the sum of $432,544, to be used to 
make all principal and interest payments on the Alternate Bonds on June 30, 2021 and December 
30, 2021 in the amounts of $58,772 and $373,772 respectfully; and, 
 

WHEREAS, approximately $432,544 of the Pledged Revenue needs to be deposited into 
the Administrative Expense Account of the 2012F Alternate Bond Fund, the County Board may, 
by Ordinance, abate the aforementioned Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy for that year; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the County Board of the County of Winnebago authorized on September 25, 
2020, the transfer of $432,544 into the Revenue Fund of the 2012F Alternate Bond Fund; and, 
 

WHEREAS, there is presently $432,544 in the aforesaid Revenue Account which is 
sufficient to fully make all principal and interest payments on the aforementioned outstanding 
Alternate Bonds through December 30, 2021; and, 
 



 WHEREAS, the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides that once sufficient funds have been 
placed in the Revenue Fund of the 2012F Alternate Bond Fund, the County Board may, by 
Ordinance, abate the aforementioned Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy for that year; and, 
 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois that 2012F Alternate Revenue Bond Property Tax Levy for 2020 in the amount 
of $432,544 is hereby abated in its entirety. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its adoption. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized 
and directed to file a certified copy of this tax abatement Ordinance in the office of the Winnebago 
County Clerk. 
 
 The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of  

 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2021. 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 

JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2021-CO 
 
TO: THE HONORABLE MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY  

OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
Your Finance Committee Presents AN ORDINANCE TO ABATE THE 2012G 
ALTERNATE REVENUE BOND PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR THE YEAR 2020                   
 and recommends its adoption. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 

JAIME SALGADO, 
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 JAIME SALGADO, 
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

STEVE SCHULTZ  STEVE SCHULTZ 

JOHN BUTITTA  JOHN BUTITTA 

PAUL ARENA  PAUL ARENA 

JOE HOFFMAN  JOE HOFFMAN 

JEAN CROSBY  JEAN CROSBY 

KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 



Sponsored by:  Jaime Salgado 
COUNTY BOARD MEETING 

 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 
 

2021-CO 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE  TO ABATE THE 2012G ALTERNATE REVENUE 
BOND PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR THE YEAR 2020                   

 
 

WHEREAS, on September 6, 2012 the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
adopted Ordinance No. 2012 CO62 (the Authorizing Ordinance) authorizing the issuance of 
General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source) Series 2012G as provided in the Act, in an 
amount not to exceed $5,000,000; and, 

 
WHEREAS, on October 25, 2012, the County Board of the County of Winnebago adopted 

Ordinance No. 2012G CO 074 (hereinafter referred to as “Alternate Bond Ordinance”) which 
authorized and provided for the issuance of $1,680,000 General Obligation Bonds (Alternative 
Revenue Source); and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Alternate Bond Ordinance gave the County the authority to sell Alternate 
Bonds for the purpose of paying the costs of constructing an intersection and associated 
improvements at Baxter/ Harrisville Road and acquiring a water system; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides the principal and interest payments 
on the aforementioned Alternate Bonds shall be made from the Host Fee revenues, Connection 
Fees and Sales Taxes, which have been pledged towards the payment of the Bonds; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Alternate Bond Ordinance also provides that the County shall levy an 
Alternate Bond Property Tax, each year until the Bonds are fully paid, in an amount sufficient to 
fully make principal and interest payments on the Alternate Bonds as such payments become due; 
and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Alternate Bond Ordinance further provides that the County shall levy an 
Alternate Bond Property Tax in 2020 sufficient to produce the sum of $166,800, to be used to 
make interest payments on the Alternate Bonds on June 30, 2021 and December 30, 2021 in the 
amounts of $23,400 and $143,400 respectfully; and, 
 

WHEREAS, there is presently $166,800 in the aforesaid Revenue Account which is 
sufficient to fully make all principal and interest payments on the aforementioned outstanding 
Alternate Bonds through December 30, 2021; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides that once sufficient funds have been 
placed in the Revenue Account of the 2012G Alternate Bond Fund, the County Board may, by 
Ordinance, abate the aforementioned Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy for that year; and, 
 



WHEREAS, approximately $166,800 of the Pledged Revenue needs to be deposited into 
the Administrative Expense Account of the 2012G Alternate Bond Fund to pay all administrative 
expenses chargeable to the aforesaid Alternate Bond issue through December 2021. 

 
WHEREAS, the County Board of the County of Winnebago authorized on September 25, 

2020 the transfer of $166,800 into the Revenue Fund of the 2012G Alternate Revenue Bond Fund. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois that the 2012G Alternate Revenue Bond Property Tax Levy for 2020 in the 
amount of $166,800 is hereby abated in its entirety. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its adoption. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized 
and directed to file a certified copy of this tax abatement Ordinance in the office of the Winnebago 
County Clerk. 
 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the  
 
County of Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2021. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2021-CO 
 
TO: THE HONORABLE MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY  

OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
Your Finance Committee presents AN ORDINANCE TO ABATE THE 2013A PUBLIC 
SAFETY SALES TAX ALTERNATE BOND PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR 
THE YEAR 2020 and recommends its adoption. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 

JAIME SALGADO, 
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 JAIME SALGADO, 
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

STEVE SCHULTZ  STEVE SCHULTZ 

JOHN BUTITTA  JOHN BUTITTA 

PAUL ARENA  PAUL ARENA 

JOE HOFFMAN  JOE HOFFMAN 

JEAN CROSBY  JEAN CROSBY 

KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 



Sponsored by:  Jaime Salgado 
COUNTY BOARD MEETING 

 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

 
2021-CO 

 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO ABATE THE 2013A PUBLIC SAFETY SALES TAX 
ALTERNATE BOND PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR THE YEAR 2020 

 
 

WHEREAS, on May 22, 2003 the County Board of the County of Winnebago passed 
Ordinance No. 2003-CO-44 which gave the County of Winnebago the authority to sell Alternate 
Bonds in an amount not to exceed $115,000,000 to raise money for the purpose of paying the expenses 
of acquisition of land, and construction of a new Criminal Justice Center; and, 
 

WHEREAS, on June 9, 2005 the County Board of the County of Winnebago adopted 
Ordinance No. 2005-CO-51 (the Series 2005A Bonds) which the Board ordained to issue $40,000,000 
in Alternate Bonds; and, 

 
WHEREAS, on April 13, 2006 the County Board of the County of Winnebago adopted 

Ordinance No. 2006-CO-56 (the Series 2006A Bonds) which the Board ordained to issue $44,000,000 
in Alternate Bonds; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the Alternate Bond Ordinances provides that the principal and interest payments 
on the aforesaid Alternate Bonds shall be made from Public Safety Sales Tax Dollars (Pledged 
Revenues), which have been pledged towards the payment of the Bonds; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the County Board determined that it was necessary and desirable and in the best 

interests of the inhabitants of the County, in order to obtain net present value interest savings on the 
Series 2005A Bonds and the Series 2006B Bonds, to (i) refund the outstanding Series 2005A Bonds 
maturing on December 30 of each of the years from 2016 through 2024, inclusive (the “Refunded 
Series 2005A Bonds”), and (ii) refund the outstanding Series 2006A Bonds maturing on December 
30 of each of the years from 2019 through 2024, inclusive (the “Refunded Series 2006A Bonds”); 
and, 

 
WHEREAS, the County Board adopted Ordinance No. 2013-CO-007 on January 24, 2013, 

authorizing the issuance and providing for the sale of up to $45,000,000 of the County’s General 
Obligation Alternate Refunding Bonds (Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Revenue Sources), Series 
2013A (the “Series 2013A Bonds”).  The Series 2013A Bonds were issued on February 7, 2013.  A 
portion of the proceeds of the Series 2013A Bonds was deposited into escrow, invested in U.S. 
Treasury Obligations, and was applied to refund and defease the Refunded Series 2005A Bonds, 
which were called for redemption on June 30, 2015, and to refund and defease the Refunded Series 
2006A Bonds, which were called for redemption on December 30, 2015, in each case the earliest 
possible redemption date; and,  

 
WHEREAS, the County Board determined that it was necessary to advance refund a portion 

of the outstanding Series 2013A Bonds (the Refunded Bonds) and to pay the Refunded Bonds on the 



stated date of maturity for each of the Refunded Bonds in order to restructure the debt service on the 
Refunded Bonds; and, 

 
WHEREAS,  the County issued Taxable General Obligation Alternate Revenue Bonds in the 

amount of $5,420,000 for the purpose of advance refunding and restructuring a portion of the 
outstanding general obligation Alternate Refunding Bonds, Series 2013A; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 2016-CO-133 was adopted on December 22, 2016 which 

provided for the abatement of a portion of property taxes levied to pay principal and interest on a 
portion of the Outstanding General Obligation Alternate Refunding Bonds, Series 2013A. 

 
WHEREAS, certain 2013A bonds remained outstanding and were not abated by Ordinance 

No. 2016-CO-133; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Section 19 of the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides the County shall also levy 

an annual 2013A Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax in the amount sufficient to 
make the principal and interest payments on the outstanding Alternate Bonds as such payments 
become due, for each year in which any of the Bonds are outstanding; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the amended 2013A Alternate Bond Tax Levy pursuant to Ordinance No. 2016-

CO-133 provides that the County shall levy a 2020 2013A Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond 
Property Tax sufficient to produce the sum of $3,933,450, the amount needed to make all principal 
and interest payments on the outstanding Alternate Bonds through December 30, 2021; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Section 21 of the Alternate Bond Ordinance authorizes the County Board to 

abate each annual 2013A Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Tax Levy provided there are 
sufficient funds on deposit in the Pledge Revenues Subaccount of the Principal and Interest Account 
of the 2013A Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Fund to fully pay the Alternate Bond Debt 
Service otherwise payable from each such Tax Levy; and, 

 
WHEREAS, there is presently $3,933,450 in the aforesaid Pledged Revenues Subaccount, 

which is sufficient to fully make all principal and interest payments on the aforementioned 
outstanding Alternate Bonds through December 30, 2021; and, 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the Alternate Bond Ordinance, it is no longer 
necessary for the County to levy a 2013A Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax 
for the 2020 tax year. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board for the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois that the 2020 2013A Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax 
Levy in the amount of $3,933,450 is hereby abated in its entirety. 
 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its adoption. 
 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized 
and directed to file a certified copy of this tax abatement Ordinance in the office of the Winnebago 
County Clerk. 

 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of  

 



Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2021. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



2021-CO 
 
TO: THE HONORABLE MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY  

OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
Your Finance Committee presents AN ORDINANCE TO ABATE THE FEDERAL 
AID MATCHING TAX AND MOTOR FUEL TAX ALTERNATE BOND 
(2013B SERIES) PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR THE YEAR 2020 and 
recommends its adoption. 
 

  Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 

JAIME SALGADO, 
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 JAIME SALGADO, 
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

STEVE SCHULTZ  STEVE SCHULTZ 

JOHN BUTITTA  JOHN BUTITTA 

PAUL ARENA  PAUL ARENA 

JOE HOFFMAN  JOE HOFFMAN 

JEAN CROSBY  JEAN CROSBY 

KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Sponsored by:  Jaime Salgado 
COUNTY BOARD MEETING 

 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

 
2021-CO 

 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO ABATE THE FEDERAL AID MATCHING TAX 
AND MOTOR FUEL TAX ALTERNATE BOND (2013B SERIES) 

PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR THE YEAR 2020 
 
 

WHEREAS, on July 22, 2004 the County Board for the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
passed Ordinance No. 04CO-74 which gave the County of Winnebago the authority to sell 
Alternate Bonds in an amount not to exceed $28,000,000 to raise money for the purpose of paying 
the expenses for engineering and right-of-way costs, utility relocations, and the County’s 
proportionate share of construction or maintenance of highways in the Federal Aid Network or 
County Highway Network, and costs incident to certain transportation planning studies in the 
County; and, 
 

WHEREAS, on April 27, 2006 the County Board of the County of Winnebago passed 
Ordinance No. 2006-CO-57 (hereinafter referred to as “Alternate Bond Ordinance”) which the 
Board ordained to issue $10,000,000 in Alternate Bonds; and, 
 

WHEREAS, on January 24, 2013 the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
approved Ordinance No. 2013-CO-008 which authorizes and provides for the issuance and sale of 
up to $8,000,000 General Obligation Refunding Alternate Bonds (Matching Tax and Motor Fuel 
Tax Alternate Revenue Sources), Series 2013B of the County of Winnebago, Illinois for the 
purpose of refunding a portion of the Outstanding Aggregate Principal Amount of General 
Obligation Alternate Bonds (Matching Tax and Motor Fuel Tax Alternate Revenue Sources), 
Series 2006B; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides that the principal and interest 
payments on the aforesaid Alternate Bonds shall be made from Federal Aid Matching Tax 
Revenues and Motor Fuel Tax (Pledged Revenues), which have been pledged towards the payment 
of the Bonds; and, 
 

WHEREAS, Section 19 of the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides the County shall also 
levy an annual Federal Aid Matching Tax and Motor Fuel Tax Alternate Bond (2013B Series) 
Property Tax in an amount sufficient to make the principal and interest payments on the 
outstanding Alternate Bonds as such payments become due, for each year in which any of the 
Bonds are outstanding; and 
 

WHEREAS, in Section 19, the County ordained to levy a 2020 Federal Aid Matching Tax 
and Motor Fuel Alternate Bond (2013B Series) Property Tax sufficient to produce the sum of 
$1,005,200 (the amount needed to make all principal and interest payments on the outstanding 
Alternate Bonds through December 30, 2021); and, 
 



 
 

WHEREAS, Section 21 of the Alternate Bond Ordinance authorizes the County Board to 
abate each annual Federal Aid Matching Tax and Motor Fuel Tax Alternate Bond (2013B Series) 
Tax Levy provided there are sufficient funds on deposit in the Pledge Revenues Subaccount of the 
Principal and Interest Account of the Federal Aid Matching Tax and Motor Fuel Tax Alternate 
Bond (2013B Series) to fully pay the Alternate Bond Debt Service otherwise payable from each 
such Tax Levy; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Treasurer transferred, on a temporary basis, $502,600 

into the Pledged Revenues Subaccount of the Principal and Interest Account of the Federal Aid 
Matching Tax and Motor Fuel Tax Alternate Bond Fund (2013B Series) from the Federal Aid 
Matching Tax Fund; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Treasurer deposited $502,600 into the Pledged 

Revenues Subaccount of the Principal and Interest Account of the Federal Aid Matching Tax and 
Motor Fuel Tax Bond Fund (2013B Series) from the Motor Fuel Tax Fund; and, 

 
WHEREAS, there will be $1,005,200 in the aforesaid Pledged Revenues Subaccount, 

which is sufficient to fully make all principal and interest payments on the aforementioned 
outstanding Alternate Bonds through December 30, 2021; and, 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the Alternate Bond Ordinance, it is no longer 
necessary for the County to levy a Federal Aid Matching Tax and Motor Fuel Tax Alternate Bond 
(2013B Series) Property Tax for the 2020 tax year. 
  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board for the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois that the 2020 Federal Aid Matching Tax and Motor Fuel Tax Alternate Bond 
(2013B Series) Property Tax Levy in the amount of $1,005,200 is hereby abated in its entirety. 
 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its adoption. 
  

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized 
and directed to file a certified copy of this tax abatement Ordinance in the office of the Winnebago 
County Clerk. 
 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 
 
Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2021. 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 

JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



2021-CO 
 
TO: THE HONORABLE MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY  

OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
Your Finance Committee presents AN ORDINANCE TO ABATE THE 2016A 
PUBLIC SAFETY SALES TAX ALTERNATE BOND PROPERTY TAX 
LEVY FOR THE YEAR 2020 and recommends its adoption. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 

JAIME SALGADO, 
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 JAIME SALGADO, 
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

STEVE SCHULTZ  STEVE SCHULTZ 

JOHN BUTITTA  JOHN BUTITTA 

PAUL ARENA  PAUL ARENA 

JOE HOFFMAN  JOE HOFFMAN 

JEAN CROSBY  JEAN CROSBY 

KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 



Sponsored by:  Jaime Salgado 
COUNTY BOARD MEETING 

 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

 
2021-CO 

 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO ABATE THE 2016A PUBLIC SAFETY SALES TAX 
ALTERNATE BOND PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR THE YEAR 2020 

 
 

WHEREAS, on May 22, 2003 the County Board of the County of Winnebago passed 
Ordinance No. 2003 CO-44 which gave the County of Winnebago the authority to sell Alternate 
Bonds in an amount not to exceed $115,000,000 to raise money for the purpose of paying the 
expenses of acquisition of land, and construction of a new Criminal Justice Center; and, 
 

WHEREAS, on April 27, 2006 the County Board of the County of Winnebago passed 
Ordinance No. 2006 CO-56 (hereinafter referred to as “Alternate Bond Ordinance”) which the 
Board ordained to issue $44,000,000 in Alternate Bonds; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides that the principal and interest 
payments on the aforesaid Alternate Bonds shall be made from Public Safety Sales Tax Dollars 
(Pledged Revenues), which have been pledged towards the payment of the Bonds; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the County Board determined that it was necessary and desirable and in the 
best interests of the inhabitants of the County, in order to obtain net present value interest savings 
on the Series 2005A Bonds and the Series 2006A Bonds, to (i) refund the outstanding Series 2005A 
Bonds maturing on December 30 of each of the years from 2016 through 2024, inclusive (the 
“Refunded Series 2005A Bonds”), and (ii) refund the outstanding Series 2006A Bonds maturing 
on December 30 of each of the years from 2019 through 2024, inclusive (the “Refunded Series 
2006A Bonds”); and, 

 
WHEREAS, the County Board adopted Ordinance No. 2013-CO-007 on January 24, 

2013, authorizing the issuance and providing for the sale of up to $45,000,000 of the County’s 
General Obligation Alternate Refunding Bonds (Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Revenue 
Sources), Series 2013A (the “Series 2013A Bonds”).  The Series 2013A Bonds were issued on 
February 7, 2013.  A portion of the proceeds of the Series 2013A Bonds was deposited into escrow, 
invested in U.S. Treasury Obligations, and was applied to refund and defease the Refunded Series 
2005A Bonds, which were called for redemption on June 30, 2015, and to refund and defease the 
Refunded Series 2006A Bonds, which were called for redemption on December 30, 2015, in each 
case the earliest possible redemption date; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the County Board adopted Ordinance No. 2013-CO-018 which provided for 

the abatement of a portion of the property taxes levied to pay principal and interest on the 



 
 
 
 

outstanding general obligation alternate bonds (Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Revenue Source) 
Series 2006A; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the County Board approved Ordinance No. 2016-CO-043 on March 24, 2016 

which authorized and provided for the issuance and sale of $2,485,000 General Obligation 
Alternate Refunding Bonds, Series 2016A for the purpose of refunding all of the $2,505,000 
outstanding aggregate principal amount of General Obligation Bonds, Series 2006A; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Section 20 of the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides that the County shall 

also levy an annual 2016A Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond tax in an amount sufficient to 
make the principal and interest on 2016A Bonds due for each year; and, 

 
WHEREAS, in said Section 20, the Ordinance provides that the County shall levy for the 

2020 2016A Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax an amount sufficient to produce 
the sum of $99,400; the amount needed to make all principal and interest payments on the 
outstanding Alternate Bonds through December 30, 2021; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Section 22 of the Alternate Bond Ordinance authorizes the County Board to 

abate each annual 2016A Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Tax Levy provided there are 
sufficient funds on deposit in the Pledge Revenue Subaccount of the Principal and Interest account 
to fully pay the Alternate Bond Debt Service otherwise payable from such tax levy; and, 

 
WHEREAS, there is presently $99,400 in the aforesaid Pledged Revenues Subaccount 

which is sufficient to fully make all principal and interest payments on the aforementioned 
outstanding Alternate Bonds through December 30, 2021; and, 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the Alternate Bond Ordinance, it is no longer 
necessary for the County to levy a 2016A Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax 
for the 2020 tax year. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board for the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois that the 2016A Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy in 
the amount of $99,400 for the 2020 tax year is hereby abated in its entirety. 
 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its adoption. 
 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized 
and directed to file a certified copy of this tax abatement Ordinance in the office of the Winnebago 
County Clerk. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 
Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2021. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



2021-CO 
 
TO: THE HONORABLE MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY  

OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
Your Finance Committee presents AN ORDINANCE TO ABATE THE 2016D PUBLIC 
SAFETY SALES TAX ALTERNATE BOND PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR 
THE YEAR 2020 and recommends its adoption. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 

JAIME SALGADO, 
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 JAIME SALGADO, 
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

STEVE SCHULTZ  STEVE SCHULTZ 

JOHN BUTITTA  JOHN BUTITTA 

PAUL ARENA  PAUL ARENA 
 

JOE HOFFMAN  JOE HOFFMAN 

JEAN CROSBY  JEAN CROSBY 

KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 



Sponsored by:  Jaime Salgado 
COUNTY BOARD MEETING 

 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

 
2021-CO 

 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO ABATE THE 2016D PUBLIC SAFETY SALES TAX 
ALTERNATE BOND PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR THE YEAR 2020 

 
 

WHEREAS, on May 22, 2003 the County Board of the County of Winnebago passed 
Ordinance No. 2003-CO-44 which gave the County of Winnebago the authority to sell Alternate 
Bonds in an amount not to exceed $115,000,000 to raise money for the purpose of paying the expenses 
of acquisition of land, and construction of a new Criminal Justice Center; and, 
 

WHEREAS, on June 9, 2005 the County Board of the County of Winnebago adopted 
Ordinance No. 2005-CO-51 (the Series 2005A Bonds) which the Board ordained to issue $40,000,000 
in Alternate Bonds; and, 

 
WHEREAS, on April 13, 2006 the County Board of the County of Winnebago adopted 

Ordinance No. 2006-CO-56 (the Series 2006A Bonds) which the Board ordained to issue $44,000,000 
in Alternate Bonds; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the Alternate Bond Ordinances provides that the principal and interest payments 
on the aforesaid Alternate Bonds shall be made from Public Safety Sales Tax Dollars (Pledged 
Revenues), which have been pledged towards the payment of the Bonds; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the County Board determined that it was necessary and desirable and in the best 

interests of the inhabitants of the County, in order to obtain net present value interest savings on the 
Series 2005A Bonds and the Series 2006B Bonds, to (i) refund the outstanding Series 2005A Bonds 
maturing on December 30 of each of the years from 2016 through 2024, inclusive (the “Refunded 
Series 2005A Bonds”), and (ii) refund the outstanding Series 2006A Bonds maturing on December 
30 of each of the years from 2019 through 2024, inclusive (the “Refunded Series 2006A Bonds”); 
and, 

 
WHEREAS, the County Board adopted Ordinance No. 2013-CO-007 on January 24, 2013, 

authorizing the issuance and providing for the sale of up to $45,000,000 of the County’s General 
Obligation Alternate Refunding Bonds (Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Revenue Sources), Series 
2013A (the “Series 2013A Bonds”).  The Series 2013A Bonds were issued on February 7, 2013.  A 
portion of the proceeds of the Series 2013A Bonds was deposited into escrow, invested in U.S. 
Treasury Obligations, and was applied to refund and defease the Refunded Series 2005A Bonds, 
which were called for redemption on June 30, 2015, and to refund and defease the Refunded Series 
2006A Bonds, which were called for redemption on December 30, 2015, in each case the earliest 
possible redemption date; and,  

 
WHEREAS, the County Board determined that it was necessary to advance refund a portion 

of the outstanding Series 2013A Bonds (the Refunded Bonds) and to pay the Refunded Bonds on the  
 



stated date of maturity for each of the Refunded Bonds in order to restructure the debt service on the 
Refunded Bonds; and,  

 
WHEREAS, the County issued Taxable General Obligation Alternate Revenue Bonds, Series 

2016D in the amount of $5,420,000 for the purpose of advance refunding and restructuring a portion 
of the outstanding general obligation Alternate Refunding Bonds, Series 2013A; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Section 20 of the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides the County shall also levy 

an annual 2016D Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax in the amount sufficient to 
make the principal and interest payments on the outstanding Alternate Bonds as such payments 
become due, for each year in which any of the Bonds are outstanding; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the 2016D Alternate Bond Tax Levy provides that the County shall levy a 2020 

2016D Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax sufficient to produce the sum of 
$376,000, the amount needed to make all principal and interest payments on the outstanding Alternate 
Bonds through December 30, 2021; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Section 22 of the Alternate Bond Ordinance authorizes the County Board to 

abate each annual 2016D Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Tax Levy provided there are 
sufficient funds on deposit in the Pledge Revenues Subaccount of the Principal and Interest Account 
of the 2016D Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Fund to fully pay the Alternate Bond Debt 
Service otherwise payable from each such Tax Levy; and, 

 
WHEREAS, there is presently $376,000 in the aforesaid Pledged Revenues Subaccount, 

which is sufficient to fully make all principal and interest payments on the aforementioned 
outstanding Alternate Bonds through December 30, 2021; and, 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the Alternate Bond Ordinance, it is no longer 
necessary for the County to levy a 2016D Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax 
for the 2020 tax year. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board for the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois that the 2020 2016D Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax 
Levy in the amount of $376,000 is hereby abated in its entirety. 
 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its adoption. 
 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized 
and directed to file a certified copy of this tax abatement Ordinance in the office of the Winnebago 
County Clerk. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 
Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2021. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



 
2021-CO 

 
TO: THE HONORABLE MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY  

OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
Your Finance Committee presents AN ORDINANCE TO ABATE THE 2016E PUBLIC 
SAFETY SALES TAX ALTERNATE BOND PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR 
THE YEAR 2020 and recommends its adoption. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 

JAIME SALGADO, 
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 JAIME SALGADO, 
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

STEVE SCHULTZ  STEVE SCHULTZ 

JOHN BUTITTA  JOHN BUTITTA 

PAUL ARENA  PAUL ARENA 

JOE HOFFMAN  JOE HOFFMAN 

JEAN CROSBY  JEAN CROSBY 

KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 



 
Sponsored by:  Jaime Salgado 

COUNTY BOARD MEETING 
 

Submitted by:    Finance Committee 
 

2021-CO 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO ABATE THE 2016E PUBLIC SAFETY SALES TAX 
ALTERNATE BOND PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR THE YEAR 2020 

 
 

WHEREAS, on May 22, 2003 the County Board of the County of Winnebago passed 
Ordinance No. 2003 CO-44 which gave the County of Winnebago the authority to sell Alternate 
Bonds in an amount not to exceed $115,000,000 to raise money for the purpose of paying the expenses 
of acquisition of land, and construction of a new Criminal Justice Center; and, 
 

WHEREAS, on September 4, 2003 the County Board of the County of Winnebago passed 
Ordinance No. 2003-CO-106 (hereinafter referred to as “Alternate Bond Ordinance”) which the 
Board ordained to issue $25,000,000 in Alternate Bonds; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the County Board determined that it was necessary and in the best interest of 
the County to obtain net present value interest savings and to restructure the indebtedness represented 
by the Series 2003E Bonds and to refund the portion of the Bonds of the outstanding Series 2003E 
Bonds maturing in each of the years 2020 to 2022 inclusive; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the County Board adopted Ordinance No. 2006-CO-143 on November 21, 2006 

authorizing the issuance, and providing for the sale of, the County’s General Obligation Refinancing 
Alternate Bonds (Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Revenue Source) Series 2006E in the amount of 
$18,765,000; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the County Board approved Ordinance No. 2016-CO-119 on November 10, 

2016 authorizing and providing for the issuance and sale of $18,515,000 General Obligation Alternate 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2016E of the County of Winnebago, Illinois for the purpose of currently 
refunding and restructuring a portion of the outstanding General Obligation Alternate Refunding 
Bonds 2006E; and, 
 

WHEREAS, Section 20 of the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides the County shall also levy 
an annual 2016E Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax in an amount sufficient to 
make the principal and interest payments on the outstanding Alternate Bonds as such payments 
become due, for each year in which any of the Bonds are outstanding; and, 
 

WHEREAS, in said Section 20, the County ordained to levy a 2020 2016E Public Safety 
Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax sufficient to produce the sum of $656,450 the amount needed 
to make all principal and interest payments on the outstanding Alternate Bonds through December 
30, 2021; and, 
 

WHEREAS, Section 22 of the Alternate Bond Ordinance authorizes the County Board to 
abate each annual 2016E Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Tax Levy provided there are 
sufficient funds on deposit in the Pledge Revenues Subaccount of the Principal and Interest Account 



 
 
 
of the 2016E Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Fund to fully pay the Alternate Bond Debt 
Service otherwise payable from each such Tax Levy; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Treasurer deposited $656,450 into the Pledged 
Revenues Subaccount of the Principal and Interest Account of the 2016E Public Safety Sales Tax 
Alternate Bond Fund; and, 

 
WHEREAS, there is presently $656,450 in the aforesaid Pledged Revenues Subaccount, 

which is sufficient to fully make all principal and interest payments on the aforementioned 
outstanding Alternate Bonds through December 30, 2021; and, 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the Alternate Bond Ordinance, it is no longer 
necessary for the County to levy a 2016E Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax 
for the 2020 tax year. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board for the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois that the 2016E Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy in 
the amount of $656,450 for the 2020 tax year is hereby abated in its entirety. 
 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its adoption. 
 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized 
and directed to file a certified copy of this tax abatement Ordinance in the office of the Winnebago 
County Clerk. 

 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of  

 
Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2021. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2021-CO 
 
TO: THE HONORABLE MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY  

OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
Your Finance Committee presents AN ORDINANCE TO ABATE THE FEDERAL 
AID MATCHING TAX AND MOTOR FUEL TAX ALTERNATE BOND 
(2017 SERIES B) PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR THE YEAR 2020 and 
recommends its adoption. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 

JAIME SALGADO, 
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 JAIME SALGADO, 
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

STEVE SCHULTZ  STEVE SCHULTZ 

JOHN BUTITTA  JOHN BUTITTA 

PAUL ARENA  PAUL ARENA 

JOE HOFFMAN  JOE HOFFMAN 

JEAN CROSBY  JEAN CROSBY 

KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 



 
 
 

 
 

Sponsored by:  Jaime Salgado 
COUNTY BOARD MEETING 

 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

 
2021-CO 

 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO ABATE THE FEDERAL AID MATCHING TAX 
AND MOTOR FUEL TAX ALTERNATE BOND (2017 SERIES B) 

PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR THE YEAR 2020 
 
 

WHEREAS, on July 22, 2004 the County Board for the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
passed Ordinance No. 04CO-74 which gave the County of Winnebago the authority to sell 
Alternate Bonds in an amount not to exceed $28,000,000 to raise money for the purpose of paying 
the expenses for engineering and right-of-way costs, utility relocations, and the County’s 
proportionate share of construction or maintenance of highways in the Federal Aid Network or 
County Highway Network, and costs incident to certain transportation planning studies in the 
County; and, 
 

WHEREAS, on May 10, 2007 the County Board of the County of Winnebago passed 
Ordinance No. 2007CO45 (hereinafter referred to as “Alternate Bond Ordinance”) which the 
Board ordained to issue $8,000,000 in Alternate Bonds; and, 

 
WHEREAS, on February 23, 2017, the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 

Illinois approved Ordinance No. 2017-CO-027 which authorizes and provides for the issuance and 
sale of up to $3,085,000 General Obligation Alternate Refunding Bonds (Matching Tax and Motor 
Fuel Tax Alternate Revenue Sources) Series 2017B of the County of Winnebago, Illinois for the 
purpose of advance refunding a portion of the Outstanding Aggregate Principal Amount of General 
Obligation Alternate Bonds (Matching Tax and Motor Fuel Tax Alternate Revenue Source), Series 
2007A; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides that the principal and interest 
payments on the aforesaid Alternate Bonds shall be made from Federal Aid Matching Tax 
Revenues and Motor Fuel Tax (Pledged Revenues), which have been pledged towards the payment 
of the Bonds; and, 
 

WHEREAS, Section 20 of the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides the County shall also 
levy an annual Federal Aid Matching Tax and Motor Fuel Tax Alternate Bond (2007A Series) 
Property Tax in an amount sufficient to make the principal and interest payments on the 
outstanding Alternate Bonds as such payments become due for each year in which any of the 
Bonds are outstanding; and 
 

WHEREAS, in Section 20, the County ordained to levy a 2020 Federal Aid Matching Tax 
and Motor Fuel Alternate Bond (2017B Series) Property Tax sufficient to produce the sum of 
$726,950 (the amount needed to make all principal and interest payments on the outstanding 
Alternate Bonds through December 30, 2021); and, 
 



 
 

WHEREAS, Section 22 of the Alternate Bond Ordinance authorizes the County Board to 
abate each annual Federal Aid Matching Tax and Motor Fuel Tax Alternate Bond (2017B Series) 
Tax Levy provided there are sufficient funds on deposit in the Pledge Revenues Subaccount of the 
Principal and Interest Account of the Federal Aid Matching Tax and Motor Fuel Tax Alternate 
Bond (2017B Series) to fully pay the Alternate Bond Debt Service otherwise payable from each 
such Tax Levy; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Treasurer transferred, on a temporary basis, $363,475 
into the Pledged Revenues Subaccount of the Principal and Interest Account of the Federal Aid 
Matching Tax and Motor Fuel Tax Alternate Bond Fund (2017B Series) from the Federal Aid 
Matching Tax Fund; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Treasurer deposited $363,475 into the Pledged 

Revenues Subaccount of the Principal and Interest Account of the Federal Aid Matching Tax and 
Motor Fuel Tax Bond Fund (2017B Series) from the Motor Fuel Tax Fund; and, 

 
WHEREAS, there is presently $726,950 in the aforesaid Pledged Revenues Subaccount, 

which is sufficient to fully make all principal and interest payments on the aforementioned 
outstanding Alternate Bonds through December 30, 2021; and, 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the Alternate Bond Ordinance, it is no longer 
necessary for the County to levy a Federal Aid Matching Tax and Motor Fuel Tax Alternate Bond 
(2017B Series) Property Tax for the 2020 tax year. 
  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board for the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois that the 2020 Federal Aid Matching Tax and Motor Fuel Tax Alternate Bond 
(2017B Series) Property Tax Levy in the amount of $726,950 is hereby abated in its entirety. 
 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its adoption. 
  

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized 
and directed to file a certified copy of this tax abatement Ordinance in the office of the Winnebago 
County Clerk. 
 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 
Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2021. 
 
 
 

 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 



2021-CO 
 
TO: THE HONORABLE MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY  

OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
Your Finance Committee presents AN ORDINANCE TO ABATE THE 2017C TORT 
PROPERTY TAX AND QUARTER CENT SALES TAX ALTERNATE 
BOND PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR THE YEAR 2020 and recommends its 
adoption. 
 
 

  Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 

JAIME SALGADO, 
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 JAIME SALGADO, 
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

STEVE SCHULTZ  STEVE SCHULTZ 

JOHN BUTITTA  JOHN BUTITTA 

PAUL ARENA  PAUL ARENA 

JOE HOFFMAN  JOE HOFFMAN 

JEAN CROSBY  JEAN CROSBY 

KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Sponsored by:  Jaime Salgado 
COUNTY BOARD MEETING 

 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

 
2021-CO 

 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO ABATE THE 2017C TORT PROPERTY  
TAX AND QUARTER CENT SALES TAX ALTERNATE BOND  

PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR THE YEAR 2020 
 
 

WHEREAS, on December 22, 2009 the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois passed Ordinance No. 2009-CO-87 (hereinafter referred to as “Alternate Bond Ordnance”) 
which gave the County the authority to sell Alternate Bonds for the purpose of paying expenses 
associated with certain tort obligations in excess of insurance coverage; and, 
 

WHEREAS, on March 12, 2010 the County of Winnebago, pursuant to the Alternate Bond 
Ordinance, sold Alternate Bonds having an aggregate face value of $13,000,000; and, 

 
WHEREAS, on April 27, 2017, the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 

approved Ordinance No. 2017-CO-046 which authorizes and provides for the issuance and sale of 
up to $10,250,000 General Obligation Alternate Refunding Bonds (Tort Fund Property Tax 
Alternate Revenue Sources) Series 2017C of the County of Winnebago, Illinois for the purpose of 
advance refunding a portion of the Outstanding Aggregate Principal Amount of General 
Obligation Alternate Bonds (Tort Fund Property Tax Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2010A; 
and, 
 

WHEREAS, the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides the principal and interest payments 
on the aforementioned Alternate Bonds shall be made from the Tort Fund Property Tax; and, 
 

WHEREAS, Section 20 of the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides the County shall also 
levy an annual Property Tax in an amount sufficient to make the principal and interest payments 
on the outstanding Alternate Bonds as such payments become due, for each year in which any of 
the aforementioned Bonds are outstanding; and, 
 

WHEREAS, in Section 20 of the Alternate Bond Ordinance the County ordained to levy 
a 2020 Property Tax sufficient to produce the sum of $965,350 (the amount needed to make all 
principal and interest payments on the outstanding Alternate Bonds through December 30, 2021); 
and, 
 

WHEREAS, Section 22 of the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides, that the County 
Treasurer shall deposit Pledged Revenues into the Pledged Revenues subaccount of the Bond Fund 
in an amount necessary to provide for the payment of interest and principal coming due on the 
Series 2017C Bonds in the following year and upon the deposit of such monies for such year, the 
County may abate the Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy for that year; and, 



 
WHEREAS, there is $965,350 in the aforesaid Pledged Revenues Subaccount to fully 

make all principal and interest payments on the aforementioned outstanding Alternate Bond Fund 
through December 30, 2021; and, 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the Alternate Bond Ordinance it is no longer 

necessary for the County to levy a 2017C Alternate Bond Property Tax for the 2020 tax year; and, 
 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the people of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
that the 2017C Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy be abated in the total amount of $965,350. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois, that the 2017C Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy for the 2020 tax year in 
the amount of $965,350 is hereby abated in its entirety. 
 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its adoption. 
 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized 
and directed to file a certified copy of this tax abatement Ordinance in the office of the Winnebago 
County Clerk. 

 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of  

 
Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2021. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

2021-CO 
 
TO: THE HONORABLE MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY  

OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
Your Finance Committee presents AN ORDINANCE TO ABATE THE 2020A 
WINNEBAGO COUNTY ALTERNATE BOND PROPERTY TAX LEVY 
FOR THE YEAR 2020 and recommends its adoption. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 

JAIME SALGADO, 
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 JAIME SALGADO, 
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

STEVE SCHULTZ  STEVE SCHULTZ 

JOHN BUTITTA  JOHN BUTITTA 

PAUL ARENA  PAUL ARENA 

JOE HOFFMAN  JOE HOFFMAN 

JEAN CROSBY  JEAN CROSBY 

KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 



Sponsored by:  Jaime Salgado 
COUNTY BOARD MEETING 

 
Submitted by :  Finance Committee 
 

2021–CO  
_______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO ABATE THE 2020A ALTERNATE REVENUE  
BOND PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR THE YEAR 2020  

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

WHEREAS, on January 23, 2020 the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
adopted Ordinance No. 2020-CO-007 (the Authorizing Ordinance) authorizing the issuance of 
General Obligation Bonds (Matching Tax and Motor Fuel Tax Alternate Revenue Source) Series 
2020A as provided in the Act, in an amount not to exceed $4,000,000; and, 
 

WHEREAS, on May 14, 2020 the County Board of the County of Winnebago adopted 
Ordinance No. 2020-CO-039 (hereinafter referred to as “Alternate Bond Ordinance”) which 
authorized and provided for the issuance of not to exceed $4,000,000; and,  

 
WHEREAS, the Alternate Bond Ordinance gave the County the authority to sell Alternate 

Bonds for the purpose of constructing, maintaining and improving County highways, roads and 
bridges; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides the principal and interest payments 

on the aforementioned Alternate Bonds shall be made from Matching Tax monies and Motor Fuel 
taxes which have been pledged towards the payment of the Bonds; and,  

  
WHEREAS, the Alternate Bond Ordinance also provides that the County shall levy and 

Alternate Bond Property Tax each year until the Bonds are fully paid, in an amount sufficient to 
fully make principal and interest payments on the Alternate Bonds as such payments come are; 
and,  

 
WHEREAS, on June 3, 2020 the County of Winnebago sold Alternate Bonds having a 

face value of $2,590,000; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago issued a Direction for Abatement of Taxes to abate 
from the taxes levied in the Bond Ordinance that amount representing the reduction to the County 
resulting from the sale of the Bonds in the amount and bearing interest at the rates as hereinabove 
referred to, the amount of such abatement and the remainder of such taxes so levied which is to be 
extended for collection; and,   

 
 WHEREAS, Section 13 of the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides that when funds are 
available and on deposit in the Bond Fund in an amount necessary to provide for the payment of 
interest and principal coming due on the Series 2020A Bonds in the following year and upon the 
deposit of said monies for said year, the County may abate the Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy for 
that year; and, 
 



 WHEREAS, there is $129,500 in the aforesaid Bond Fund to fully make all principal and 
interest payments on the aforementioned outstanding Alternate Bond Fund through December 30, 
2021; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the Alternate Bond Ordinance it is no longer necessary 
for the County to levy a 2020A Alternate Bond Property Tax for the 2020 tax year; and,  
 
 WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the people of the County of Winnebago, Illinois that 
the 2020A Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy be abated in the total amount of $129,500.                               
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, that the 2020A Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy for the 2020 tax year in the 
amount of $129,500 is hereby abated in its entirety.   
 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its adoption. 

 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized 

and directed to file a certified copy of this Tax Abatement Ordinance in the office of the 
Winnebago County Clerk. 
 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois on the _____ day of __________, 2021. 
 
 
                       ______________________________  

                                                                             Joseph V. Chiarelli,  
Chairman of the County Board 

of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
______________________________   
Lori Gummow  
Clerk of the County Board 
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

2021-CO 
 
TO: THE HONORABLE MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY  

OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
Your Finance Committee presents AN ORDINANCE TO ABATE THE 2020B 
WINNEBAGO COUNTY ALTERNATE BOND PROPERTY TAX LEVY 
FOR THE YEAR 2020 and recommends its adoption. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 

JAIME SALGADO, 
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 JAIME SALGADO, 
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

STEVE SCHULTZ  STEVE SCHULTZ 

JOHN BUTITTA  JOHN BUTITTA 

PAUL ARENA  PAUL ARENA 

JOE HOFFMAN  JOE HOFFMAN 

JEAN CROSBY  JEAN CROSBY 

KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 



Sponsored by:  Jaime Salgado 
COUNTY BOARD MEETING 

 
Submitted by :  Finance Committee 
 

2021–CO  
_______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO ABATE THE 2020B WINNEBAGO COUNTY 
ALTERNATE BOND PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR THE YEAR 2020  

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

WHEREAS, on July 22, 2010 the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
passed Ordinance No. 2010-CO-59 (hereinafter referred to as “Alternate Bond Ordinance”) which 
gave the County the authority to sell Alternate Bonds for the purpose of buying real property and 
paying the expenses associated with certain renovation/remodeling of the building; and, 
 

WHEREAS, on September 16, 2010 the County of Winnebago, pursuant to the Alternate 
Bond Ordinance, sold Alternate Bonds having an aggregate face value of $4,000,000; and,  

 
WHEREAS, the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides the principal and interest payments 

on the aforementioned Alternate Bonds shall be made from lease revenues from the Health 
Department and the Quarter Cent Sales Tax; and, 

 
WHEREAS, on May 14, 2020 the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 

approved Ordinance 2020-CO-040 which authorizes the issuance of not to exceed $2,600,000 
General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2020B of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, for the purpose of refunding certain outstanding Alternate Bonds of said 
County entitled Series 2010C Bonds; and,  

  
WHEREAS, Section 11 of the 2020B Alternate Bond Ordinance provides the County shall 

also levy an annual Property Tax in an amount sufficient to make the principal and interest 
payments on the outstanding Alternate Bonds as such payments become due, for each year in 
which any of the aforementioned Bonds are outstanding; and, 

 
WHEREAS, on June 3, 2020 the County of Winnebago sold Alternate Bonds having a 

face value of $2,020,000, and, 
 
WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago issued a Certificate of Reduction of Taxes 

heretofore levied for the payment of Bonds on June 3, 2020 to abate the taxes levied in the Bond 
Ordinance that amount representing the reduction to the County resulting from the sale of the 
Bonds in the amount and bearing interest at the rates as herein above referred to, the amount of 
such abatement and the remainder of such taxes so levied which is to be extended for collection; 
and,   

 
 WHEREAS, Section 13 of the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides, that when funds are 
available and on deposit in the Bond Fund in an amount necessary to provide for the payment of 
interest and principal coming due on the Series 2020B Bonds in the following year and upon the 



deposit of said monies for said year, the County may abate the Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy for 
that year; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, there is $257,500 in the aforesaid Bond Account to fully make all principal and 
interest payments on the aforementioned outstanding Alternate Bond Fund through December 30, 
2021; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the Alternate Bond Ordinance it is no longer necessary 
for the County to levy a 2020B Alternate Bond Property Tax for the 2020 tax year; and,  
 
 WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the people of the County of Winnebago, Illinois that 
the 2020B Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy be abated in the total amount of $257,500. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, that the 2020B Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy for the 2020 tax year in the 
amount of $257,500 is hereby abated in its entirety.   
 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its adoption. 

 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized 

and directed to file a certified copy of this tax abatement Ordinance in the office of the Winnebago 
County Clerk. 
 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois on the _____ day of __________, 2021. 
 
 
                       ______________________________  

                                                                             Joseph V. Chiarelli,  
Chairman of the County Board 

of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
______________________________   
Lori Gummow  
Clerk of the County Board 
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

UNFINISHED 
BUSINESS 



 

NEW BUSINESS 



 

ANNOUNCEMENTS & 
COMMUNICATIONS 



 

County Clerk  |  404 Elm St, Rm 104, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319-4250  |  Fax: (815) 969-0259  |  Email: CountyClerk@wincoil.us 

 

 
Announcements & Communications 
Date: February 11, 2021 
Item: Correspondence to the Board 
Prepared by: County Clerk Lori Gummow 
 

Governing Statute(s):  State of Illinois Counties Code 55 ILCS 5/Div. 3-2, Clerk 
 
County Code: Ch 2. Art. II. Div. 4, Sec. 2.86 – Record Keeping & Communications 
 
Background: The items listed below were received as correspondence.  
 
1. County Clerk Gummow received from the United States Nuclear Regulatory Commission 

the following: 
 

a. Summary of January 6, 2021, Presubmittal Meeting Between the U.S. Nuclear 
Regulatory Commission and Exelon Generation Company, LLC Regarding Licensing 
Activities to Support the Planned Early Closures of Byron, Units 1 and 2, and Dresden,  
Units 2 and 3 (EPID L-2020-LRM-0113.) 
 

b. Byron Station – Integrated Inspection Report 05000454/2020004 and 
05000455/2020004. 

 
c. Braidwood Station, Units 1 and 2; Byron Station, Unit Nos. 1 and 2; Calvert Cliffs 

Nuclear Power Plant, Units 1 and 2; Clinton Power Station, Unit No. 1; LaSalle County 
Station, Units 1 and 2; Limerick Generating Station, Units 1 and 2; and Nine Mile Point 
Nuclear Station, Unit 2 – Request for Withholding Information Regarding Proposed 
Alternative to use ASME Code Case N-893 (EPIDS L-2020-LLR-0147 and -0148.) 

 

d. Federal Register / Vol. 86, No. 20 / Tuesday, February 2, 2021 / Notices 
 

2. County Clerk Gummow received from Charter Communications a notice that on or after 
March 1, 2021, Spectrum Mid-America, LLC will launch the NFL Network for the following: 

 
a. County of Winnebago 

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:CountyClerk@wincoil.us
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=005500050HDiv%2E+3-2&ActID=750&ChapterID=12&SeqStart=14400000&SeqEnd=16300000
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH2AD_ARTIICOBO_DIV4RUPR_S2-86RECO


 

County Clerk  |  404 Elm St, Rm 104, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319-4250  |  Fax: (815) 969-0259  |  Email: CountyClerk@wincoil.us 

 

b. Township of Harlem 
c. Township of Rockton 
d. Township of Roscoe 

 
3. County Clerk Gummow received from the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency the 

following: 
 

a. Notice of Public Comment Period and Public Hearing Proposed Renewal of the Clean 
Air Act Permit Program Permit Winnebago Landfill.  

 
b. Notice of Application for Permit to Manage Waste/ Description  of Project: An 

application proving an evaluation of the groundwater quality at wells G179, G180, and 
G182 in accordance with Condition VIII.25 and an evaluation of the dissolved sulfate 
and groundwater quality at well G174, G175 AND G176 in accordance with Condition 
VIII.27 (Modification No. 84.) 

 
4. County Clerk Gummow received from The Illinois Department of Corrections the 

Winnebago County Jail 2020 Inspection Report. 
 
5. County Recorder Gummow received the Monthly Report for January, 2021.  

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:CountyClerk@wincoil.us


 

Adjournment – 
Next Meeting 


	Agenda
	Awards, Presentations, Public Hearings & Public Participation
	Approval of Minutes
	Consent Agenda
	Appointments
	Executive Summary - Kurt Rodgers
	Letter of Interest - Kurt Rodgers
	Resume - Kurt Rodgers
	Executive Summary - David Waller
	Letter of Interest - David Waller
	Resume - David Waller
	Reports of Standing Committees
	Finance Committee
	Executive Summary
	Resolution Authorizing Settlement of Litigation (Serena Samuels v. Cty. of Winnebago
	Executive Summary & Ordinance Amending Claims Settlement Procedure for Cty. of Winnebago
	Executive Summary & Ord. Establishing ("PACE") Program in Cty. of Winnebago
	Resolution for Approval of Budget Amendment for Reimbursable Technology
	Ord. Abating Tax Series 2018
	Ord. Abating Special Tax Roll for 2020
	Ord. to Abate 2012C State Income Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy for 2020
	Ord. to Abate Federal Aid Matching Tax & Motor Fuel Tax Alternate Bond (2012D)
	Ord. to Abate 2012F Alternate Revenue Bond Property Tax Levy
	Ord. to Abate 2012G Alternate Revenue Bond Property Tax Levy
	Ord. to Abate 2013A PSST Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy
	Ord. to Abate Federal Aid Matching Tax & Motor Fuel Tax Alternate Bond 2013B Series
	Ord. to Abate 2016A PSST Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy
	Ord. to Abate 2016D PSST Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy
	Ord. to Abate 2016E PSST Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy
	Ord. to Abate Federal Aid Matching Tax & Motor Fuel Tax Alternate Bond (2017 Series B)
	Ord. to Abate 2017C Tort Property Tax & Quarter Cent Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy
	Ord. to Abate 2020A Alternate Revenue Bond Property Tax Levy
	Ord. to Abate 2020B Winn. Cty. Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy
	Unfinished Business
	New Business
	Announcements & Communications
	Adjournment - Next Meeting



